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T.— AvpeErsior UnpaN SANITARY DISTRICT.

[Acreage 4,175, Number of houses in 1881, 1,570; at present, 1,735, TPopulation
in 1881: town, 12,875; South Camp, 7,2580; total, 20,155. Present population :
town, 11,000 ; South Camp, 9,874 ; total, 20,374.]

Aldershot is at the extreme north-east of Hampshire adjacent to Survey. It is three
miles to the north-east of Farnham, and four miles south of Farnborough. Although
the town of Aldershot comprises the bulk of the population of the Sanitary Distriet,
there ave in addition several considerable groupings of population, e.q., at West End,
Tedan Hill, and New Town. The South Camp, placm} north of the town, between
this and the Basingstoke Canal, is also in the Urban Distrief. It is separated from
the North Camp by the Canal. Geologically, Aldershot is ehiefly upon London Clay,
but extends also upon Lower and Upper Bagshot Sand.  The town of Aldershot has
sprung up within the last 30 years by the side of the South Camp, and is dependent
for its prosperity upon the latter, intimate connexion therefore existing between them.

Sanitary circumstances—Roads are mostly uneven, badly laid and paved. Houses,
especially new ones, are generally irregularly lr!nc::rl; many have been h.nsi:il builk
and erected, apparently without proper foundation, and with improper ma . The
Sanitary Authority exercises the most cursory control over the ercction of new
buildings, and the building byeclaws are of a very inefficient character. Back-to-
back and cellar dwellings are found in some parts of the district. FErerement
disposal—The water-carriage system is in use throughout the whole of Aldershot,
except “ West End,” where cesspit privies abound. Hopper closets, usually un-
trapped below, are the most ordinary form of closet in use, though the pan and
container with D trap is also met with. The vast majority of closets are without
water supply, and depend therefore upon hand-flushing alone. As a result, most of
the closets that I saw in Aldershot were in a foul condition from retention of faees
on the upper side of the hopper, and in some instances the contents of the closets were
found to be overflowing the seat. Refuse disposal.—Ilouse refuse is deposited usually in
ashpits, which are seldom cemented, and often not bricked ; it is in some cases merely
disposed in heaps on the ground. The Sanitary Authority contracts for removal of
refuse.  WWater supply.—A private Company, the Aldershot Water Company, supplies
the greater part of Aldershot, more than two-thirds of the whole. But a sreat many
houses still depend upon wells which are mere surface wells, though the public supply
could easily be extended to them; and at * West End ” the only souree for many houses
is a surface spring. The Aldershot Company’s water is derived by pumping from water-
bearing Chalk strata below the London Clay and Greensand at a depth of 240 feet
from the surface. 1t is pumped to two reservoirs at Anger Copse, capable together of
holding three million gallons of water, and descends thence by gravitation ta the town,
being delivered to separate taps in most of the houses, Tut to stand-pipes oceasionally.
This water is rich in carbonate of lime, and its hardness amounts to 16° (Clark’s ma.ils,
but I heard no complaint from inhabitants on this score. The water-rate is levied at
the rate of six per eent. on the rateable value of houses.  Drainage—A main draina
system exists at Aldershot, taking in the whole inhabited Local Board District, exeept
the West End part and South Camp. Starting as 12-inch pipes at the Cambridge Hotel,
these join 18-inch ones, which drain the main parts of Aldershot, these in turn joining
a 24-inch circular brick sewer along the Ash Road. Manholes are placed at junctions,
and 63 exist for every square mile.  Ventilation is earried out partly at these man-
holes, and partly by street level ventilators, which are few in number, inadequate in
size, and blocked by road débris. The flushing provided is ineflicient ; itis by the use
of hydrants at summit manholes ; no automatie provision exists.  Storm water is got
rid of by a separate system of pipes, placed in the central parts of the town alongside
the main sewers, and delivering it to ditches and ponds near the outlet. The Aldershot
sewage is treated at the Ash Bridge Sewage Works managed by Messrs. Hanson, who are
paid 400/. a year for this service by the Aldershot Urban Sanitary Authority. The two-
foot brick sewer in Ash Road conveys the raw material to the Sewage Works, where it
is at once treated by Hanson's process (lime and soda-waste), and then pumped into
m:ttlillF tanks. The effluent is drawn off from time to time, passing into a small tribu-
tary of the Blackwater, the sludge being given to a man who undertakes the cleanine
of the tanks; he sells the sludge for what he can get to the farmers. At the
time of my visit, some of this sludge had not been removed, and was mixed with rain-
water, emitting a disagrecable odour, The beck which receives the sewage eflluent is
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fatal cases of * Sore throat,” * Uleerated throat" and * Toensillitis,” aifecting chiefly
young adults in the first and fourth gquarters of the year 1884, Such malady has
attacked both the well-to-do and the humble classes, large roomy residences and small
ill-ventilated eottages, distriets connected with the mam sewer, and others having no
connexion with it, houses supplied with the public water service, and houses dependent
upon local wells.  Tradespeople, however, would seem to have suffered in excess of
other persons. Thus, of 87 deaths from throat-illness in 1884, 14 occurred at shops.
This marked incidence upon shops may have been partly due to infeetion conveyed to
them from houses in the town, or from the Camp, and eansed them also to act as foei
of the further spread of disease. No special local insanitary eondition could be pointed to
as having determined the behaviour of the Diphtheria in Aldershot. Buf there seems
little doubt that extension of the disease was greatly facilitated by its exiremely tardy
recognition ; by utter absenee of attempt at isolating the sick® when the true nature
of the malady was at length made out; and generally, by complete neglect on the part
of the Sanitary Authority of any serious step to deal with the epidemic. Unguarded
personal intercourse between Camp and Town, and within the limits of each, seems
to have been an important factor in dissemination of Diphtheria in the two places,

After due investigation, school influence was not found to have contributed any
material share in the propagation of throat-sickness; for, although first sufferers in
families were occasionally found to be school attendants, yet the schools attended iy
Aldershot children were many and various, and in no case was exeeptional incidence
found upon any particular school. Milk cirenmstances were also ingquired into, but
excluded from any part in the furtherance of throat-complaint,

The relative incidence of fatal throat-illness upon Camp and Tewn must now be
considered, as well as the question as to whether the one derived Diphtheria from the
other. In secking to ascertain the former, it must be premised that some cases living
in the Town died in the Camp (2.g., soldiers’ children removed to the infections hut
attached to the Cambridge Hospital); and also that other cases which died in the
Town were connected with the Camp, such as officers’ children, With these
reserviations, and rding deaths certified by military surgeons as Camp deaths, and
those certified by civil practitioners as Town deaths, the mortality rate of the Camp
during the period January 1st, 1882, to March 31st, 18835, is found to have been 21 per
1,000 (taken on the mean population during that time), and that of the Town 55 per
1,000 (taken on the mean of the ennmerated population in 1881 and that estimated
1885)., Thus fatal incidence has been greater upon the Town than upon the Camp,
though of course not quite so much greater as the above rates, ealeulated on total
opulation without allowing for differing proportion of children, would seem to
indicate. 1t may be worth asking whether the isolation which has been carried out
at the Camp has not had some share in this result. Personal communication of the
freest kind exists between Camp and Town, the two constituting practically one place.
Henee, if Diphtheria were introduced into one of them, its spread to the other would
be an easy matter. In 1882, fatal “Croup ™ was entirely confined to the Town, but
some of the deaths were in families connected with the Camp. In 18838, mortalit
from threat affections began in the Camp, but was in probable sequence to fa
“ Croup ™ and * Laryngitis ** in the Town during the latter end of 1882, 1In 1884 and
1885, fatal throat-illness oceurred indiscriminately in Camp and Town, following upon
that in 1883, In the matter of importation of disease from beyond the Distriet, too,
each may be considered as equally exposed to this influence.  Aldershot has abundant
opportunity for the introduetion of infectious disease, being related, by reason of its

military activity, to a great part of the country. The constant passage of troops to

and from it, the arrival of militia reeruits from rural parts for training purposes, the
advent of visitors to the Camp from time to time, especially during holiday seasons,
all afford oceasion for the importation of a disease like Diphtheria,

The deatlis at the South Camp bave been mostly children of married soldiers, tl‘lﬂllgh a
private in the Hossars (mt. 19) suecombed. The married quarters are wooden huts lined
with felt, and of ample cubic capacity. Excrement s dis]poa(xl in hopper-closets, the
sewage of the Camp beiug conveyed to a sewage farm near Farnborough,  Water is delivored
to stand-pipes from o reservoir receiving water from upland slopes.  Ashes and other refuse

are disposed in poils and frequently removed. Slops are wusually thrown down the
hopper-closets,

* Exception must be made for the South Coamp, where a hut is utilized for infectious cases ; but the position
..’t:l'lt]ns {auu:mulmind by other huts) is unsatisfactory, awd 1 understand that a mere suitable site is in course of
eing acquired,
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during seasons of drought ; and this, too, although less than one-third of the honses
in the town arve supplied with the water. The sinking of bore-tubes in search of
water-bearing strata, and the erection of suitable pumping plant in connexion with
them, are, however, under serious contemplation by the Company. Water rates are
levied according to a sliding secale, being seven per cent. of the rateable value on
houses up to 20L. T'welve shillings is the minimum charge ; hence few houses rated at
less than 8l 15 take water from the Company. The wells of Farnham are nearly
all shallow wells, in close apposition for the most part to privy cesspits; they are
liable therefore to receive foul soakage. Drainage at present.—Old brick rubble
drains of the worst type exist, draining to open ditches and watercourses joining the

Wey. But these are to be shortly abolished en smasse; a drainage scheme has been

approved by the Loeal Government Board, and the contracts for it were let before
my inquiry was terminated. The new sysfem is to provide for the drainage of the
whole of the extended Local Board Distriet, and the scheme comprises the laying of
O-ineh and 12-ineir glazed stoneware pipes throughout the Distriet, and also of a
12-inch cast-iron gravitating sewer in the centre of the town and along the Wey,
for the purpose of shutting ont subsoil water from the sewers. These sewers are to
converge toa pumping station, from which the sewage is to be pumped to a field of
12 acres extent, consisting of gravel overlying chalk, there to be treated by inter-
mittent downward filtration. The filtration areas are to be regularly underdrained at
a depth of G feet below the surface, and rain and surface water are to be rigorously
excluded. The effluent will be discharged into a tr]hutm'{ streamlet of the river
Wey. Ventilation of this system of sewerage is to be provided by man-holes and lamp-
lioles, situated about 16 to the mile. Flushing will be carried out by means of three
automatic fushing chambers, in one of which brewery waste is to be received and
used for flushing purposes. Inspection shafts are also to be provided at suitable
oints.

5 Rain spouts either enter the existing brick drains direct, or are received into tubs,
but in many places they empty their contents directly on the ground. Sink pipes
are usually untrapped, and connected direetly with slop cesspools. Some bath waste-
pipes were found to open externally over gullies.

Slaughter-houses.—There are three of these in Farnham ; they are registered, but
the byelaws regulating them are meagre and inadequate. Blaughtering is done chiefly
in open yards, and refuse finds its way to foul open cesspools, or even to ditches flowin
at the back of houses. Where channelling exists, it is imperfect and insufficient ; such
drainage of slaughter-houses as is provided is eventually to ditches, vid a series of small
cesspools overflowing one into another. Pig-killing is very common, and apparently
unregulated.

Common  Lodging-louses.—Three are registered in Farnham, two of them being
Inns. They all appeared clean, whitewashed, and fairly well ventilated.

Diphtheria prevalence.—1t will be noticed from Table (1.) that the first death recorded
from Diphtheria in the Farnham Urban Sanitary District during the ten years 1875 to
1524 was in the fourth u’uurt,cr of 1878, This was a child (mt. 4) who died in Abbey
Street on October 1st. The case was an imported one, having been brought there ill
from near the North Camp, in a dilferent Registration District. The next fatal case
occurred at Park Lane, East Street, in January in 1879. Nothing is known as to its
origin, though “ white throat " is said to have prevailed in East Street in the late autumn
of 1878. In May 1580, a death from “ Croup ™ was registered at Babb's Mead, and in
December of that year a child of 8 years died of Diphtheria at the * Borough.” The
latter case did not owe its infection to Farnham, for the child had been ill for six weeks
with Diphtheria at Brighton, and death oceurred during convalescence after return to
Farnham. As regards the “ Croup™ death in May 1880, it deserves recording that
“white throats,”” and undoubted but mild Diphtherin, had continued to be reported by
the Medical Officer of Health during 1879 and in May 18380. No deaths from Diphtheria
were registered in the town in 1881, but mild cases of the disease oceurred from time
to time, and contagious sore throats existed in great numbers. The same is true of
the first two months of 1882, but in March 1882 two deaths and in May one death
from Diphtheria were recorded, all in East Street. Since this street suffered greatly

from prevalence of the disease, it woulil seem opportune to give a brief deseription of
its clief features. 1t is a main road, situated upon a somewhat elevated ridge or
platean overlooking low-lying alluvial meadows, and is inhabited chiefly by labourers
and petty tradesmen, though some better-class louses exist here. A ditch runs
at the back of the houses on the north side of the street, which even now receives
house-slops, but at the time of the occurrence of fatal Diphtheria in the spring of
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separnte parishes ; viz., Ash, Seale, Frimley, Frensham, Wuwrlu}r! ]Junke:nﬁcld, and
the extra-urban portion of the parish of Farnham. ‘These parishes will now be
separately passed in review, both as to their general sanitary circumstances, and as
to the prevalence and behaviour of Diphtheria within them.

() Ash.

This is a large stragzling parish of 6,324 acres, situate north-east of Aldershot, and
in direct continuily with it. It is placed both upon Lower Bagshot S8and and London
Clay ; and it contains much common land covered by heather.

Sanilary circumstances.—Most of the dwellings are thatched and tiled cottages,
though there is a residential part in Ash Vale, which contains modern mansions,
inhabited by retired merchants and military men. The cottages are for the most part
small, rudely constructed, and ill-ventilated, though here and there newer ones arve
found, which are better contrived and built.  'Wooden huts, built by military pensioners
and inhabited by them, are also found. Ererement is disposed in pit-privies chiefly,
these being usually mere holes in the ground, loosely eovered by pf;uks, matting, or
loose tree-boughs; their emptying is left to the tenant of each cottage, and they are
seldom cleared before they are overfull. In the better-class houses of Ash {"n.le,
water-closets drained to cesspools are in vogue; the cesspools are usually cemented,
but rarely ventilated, and the Sanitary Authority does not undertake their scavenging.
In addition, earth-closets are to be met with in some houses, and a sort of pail system
in others. Hefuse is commonly placed in a hole dug in the garden, but sometimes
ashes are sprinkled on the soil. Moist accumulations of ashes and vegetable matter
are not infrequently deposited close to the well supplying drinkinﬁ' water. Waler is
obtained from wells, some deep, and others shallow dip-wells, and also from surface
springs. The shallow wells predominate ; they are lined with loosely-placed bricks,
and often situate close to foul unemptied cesspits, and on a lower level than these.
Each house has usually its own well, but in some cases o single well is made to suffice
for a group of cottages. Sewerage, qropcrly so called, does not exist. In the

ater part of Ash, slops are thrown haphazard on the ground, and find their way
into open ditches by the roadside, to which farm-yard refuse also gets aceess.  But.
in Ash Vale liguid house refuse is condueted by pipes from sinks to cesspools, the
pipes usuu!li cmplying over open and t.ra[.-&mrl gullies. Rain-spouts are for the most
part direeted into tubs, but in the Vale district they also commonly enter direetly
the drain leading to the cesspool.

Diphtheria prevalence.—The first death from Diphtheria registered in Ash during the
ten years 1875 to 18584 was in July 1882, No more deaths from the disease oceurred
in that year, and in 15583 only two were registered,—one in October and one in
November. But in 1854 no less than 25 deaths have been recorded from Diphtheria
in the parish,® and in 1885 up to the 7th April 7 more have been added to the
fist. The time-distribution of these fatal Di[}ht.llmria cases in Ash has been monthly
as follows :—

1584 —May - . - 6 1 1884 —November - - 1
June - - = | i December - =3
July - . - 8 | 1885.—February - - - 4
Angust - - - 3 | March - - - B
September - - 8 April (to Tth) - -1
October - - -1 —
= Total - - - 10

Total - - 232
— I

The age at which death occurred ranged from 9 months to 13 years, nine being
under five years, 19 between 5 and 10 years, and four over 10 years. Seven-
eighths of the cases were, therefore, under 10 years. The population of the parish
of Ash, according to the Census of 1881, is 1,930. Thus, the mortality rate of
Diphtheria was in 1884 cqual to 13 per 1,000, But if the villages of Wyke and.
Normandy, and the part of Worplesdon (containing 204 persons) which are comprised
within the parish, but which furnished no Diphtheria deaths, be excluded from the

* This includes two Ash children, wt, 6 and 9 years respectively, who wers removed il to the Farnlnm
Workhouse Infirmary, and died there,
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sehool age and attendants at school.® Similar sudden development of fatal Diphtheria
was witnessed shortly after the re-opening from November 24th to December th,
though not to the same extent.

Escapes were related to age,—infanis und::_l- 2 years and children over 14 years,
for the most part mapini. though two babies, wt. 6 and 9 months respectively,
were attacked, of whom the latter died, and some adults and old people suffered.
Parents who took the precaution of keeping their children from school at the {ime of
successive re-openings, and forbade them to play with other children in the street,
were often rewarded by the immunity from attack of their families. It was notieed,
too, that better-class people, who d means of isclating, suffered no second
invasion in their families ;3 whilst the removal of the two early cases to Farnham
Workhouse Infirmary was followed by a cessation of the epidemie in the row of cottages
from which they were removed. Milk distribution, and the condition of the farms
whenee the milk came, were inguired into, but set aside as having no influence in
spreading the disease. Neither was any relation between animal illness and human
Diphtheria found.

The conclusion seems, then, warranted that personal communieation of various sorts,
school attendance, and absence of any isolation, either at home or in hospital, were
the three main factors influencing the spread of Diphtheria in Ash during 1884.F

Fatality was also apparently related to age, 26 of the 32 fatal cases being between
2 and 10 years of age, whilst no death above 14 years was recorded.

Minor sove throat existed in families coincidently with true Diphtheria, and in some eases
a trivial threat affection appeared to give rise by direet infeetion to severc and fatal
Diphtheria.  Again, cases deriving infeetion from » common source showed some, membrane,
others none at all: the Iattor cases sugpest the existence of an abortive form of Diphtheria
analogous to that of * Small-pox without eruption.”  Suspicion of early infectionsness of the
disease, in its pre-exudative stage, was also afforded.

The questions of physical circumstances and grouping of houses in determining
attack were inguired into; and although in Ash Vale and Ash Common low-lying and
clustered houses escaped, whilst those situate on elevations and ridges, and isolated
one from another, were attacked, yet in the larger part of Ash, viz,, Ash Street, this
contrast was not observed. And indeed these factors, though duly considered, were
judged to be subsidiary to that of personal communication in the determination of
attack. The immunity of Wyke, Normandy, and the portion of Worplesdon in
Ash may be explained by reference fo their strageling, disconnected characters,
which lessen the chances of mutual intercourse of their inhabitants, as well as their
distance from Aldershot, and comparative freedom of communication with this place ;
they also contributed no children to the Ash Schools.

No means but school closure were taken in Ash by the Rural Authority to limit
the extension of Diphtheria. Disinfection was practised, but no sustai attempt
at isolation was made. On the first death oceurring in Ash, the Ash Street
Schools were closed from May 8th to June Tth; they were then re-opened until
June 24th, and closed on that day until July 7th. They were then in operation for five
days; following which, prolonged closure (until November 24th) was carried out.

They were again open from November 24th to December 6th, but closed on that day
until December 20th, since which date they have remained open. Ash Common

School was elosed, from (1) May Sth to June 7th; (2) July 12th to November 24th :
(8) December Gth to December 29th. Since the latter date, they, too, have remained
open. The operations of the schools may be thus shown :—

Seliools open, Hehools elosel.
June Tth—June 24th. May Sth—June Tth.
June 24th—July 7th (Ash Common June Zdth—July 7th (Ash Street
only). only).
July Tth—July 12th. July 12th—November 24th.
November 24th—December Gth, December G6th—December 20th.

* There are two schools ai Ash, viz, Ash Common Schooal and Ash Street School : the majority of Ash
childven attend the latter, T found them both well built, sdequately lighted, and on the whole well ventilated,
(though the Infant roem ot Ash Street might be improved in this particalar).  There was no overcrowiling.
Garden mould and ashes are thrown down the cosspit privies duil}l 3 the wrinals are also drained to the eesspits,
which have been recently eemented and ventiluted, and are emptied when full.

 Thus, n child at the Rectory was attacked on December 26th with “ Croup,” but no further invasion of
the i'amll;r oogurred, though, at least, one other was of susesptible nge,

c{'l.'hm influence of season upon the faculty of spread of Diphtheria was displayed in the fact that the disease
did not extend so rapidly in June as Inter, particularly during Angust and September,
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with season also, seeing that there was an absenee of deaths during the period May 15th to
July 25th, although numerous cases of threat-illness were rife. Further, of the 8 deaths
7 ocenrred in the single month July 25th to August 25th, although several non-fatal cases
were recognised aftor August.

The conclusion as to Tongham Diphtheria in 1584 is, therefore, that it was derived
from Ash, and kept up both by relation with this place, and :llmﬂ personal
communication of one and another kind within its own boundaries, assisted by school
attendance and by the complete absence of any isolation of the sick.

The only fatal case of throat-illness recorded in Seale proper was that of a child
(mt. 11) who died of “Croup” on January 11th, 1885. There was a history of free
visiting with Tongham at a time when several eases of throat affection were known to
oxist ti'mm; the child had been ill a long time before death, which resulted from
syncope during convalescence.

No means for checking the epidemic were taken in Tongham beyond closing the
schools from July 21st to November 24th. No disinfeetion of dwellings was performed,
and no isolation of the sick carried out. The futility of the bare proceeding of
schiool elosure is shown in the number of deaths which continued to oceur after it was
effected.

(c.) Frimley.

This populous parish, containing more than 4,000 inhabitants, is situate north of both
Aldershot and Farnborough, at the extreme north-west point of Surrey. It is
placed upon the Middle and Upper Bagshot Sands, and a bed of Thames Gravel also
exists in some parts of the parish. Pine-trees and furze flourish in great abundance,
and the country is well watered.

Sanitary circwmstonces of Frimley proper.—With the exception of a few residential
mansions, oecupied chiefly by retired professional and military ]puople, thatehed and
stuccoed cottages exist throughout, a few new ones made of brick being found in plaves.
Over-crowding does not as a rule exist. FErerement is disposed mostly in cesspit-
privies, though earth-closets are in use in some cases. These privy cesspits are rudely
covered, usually bricked, but rarely cemented or ventilated. Refuse is thrown on the
ground, or made into heaps. A few better-class houses have ashpits. Waler is
supplied from both publie and private wells, which are ordinarily shallow dip-wells. In
addition, open roadside ditches and watercourses, exposed to pollution from privies,
are utilized both for drinking and washing purposes.  Drairage—No proper system of
sewerage exists ; such partial house drainage as exists here and there is imperfeet and
ineflicient. The main street is provided with a short run of hig-h-.vn{ drain receiving
storm and rain-water from roadside gullies, its contents eventually reaching open
watercourses. Much water lies about in back yards, and the flooring and foundations
of houses are not uncommonly damp.

Diphtheria prevalence.—Ineluding fatal throat affections, probably diphtheritie, one
death ocewrred in Frimley proper in 1882, five in 1884, and four in the first qunarter
of 1885. The 1882 case was that of an inmate of the Royal Albert Orphan Asylum,
wt. 14, who died on February 8th of “ Laryngitis.” Five days before this, a case of
fatal * Croup " peeurred in York Town, which is the nearest centre of population to
the Asylom, and in frequent relation with it. The five 1584 deaths were all comprised
in the period December Sth to 26th, and alfected four families. (One of them was
certified as * Cynanche tonsillaris,” but a second death in the same family shortly
afterwards being termed Diphtheria makes it all but certain that the first was of like
nature.) Their ages were respectively, three, four (2), eight, and nine years. The
four 1855 deaths, which were in three familics, oceurred between the Srd and 12th March,
and were aged respectively four, five, and seven (2) years. On seeking the origin of
the Diphtheria of Frimley proper in 1884, I was informed by the schoolmaster of
Frimley School that a lad named Hursey, living in Mitchett Road, did not return to
school when it re-opened at the end of September, owing to his being laid up with
Diphtheria. On inquiring into the case, 1 found that the boy (whose age was eight
years) was attacked with Diphtheria at the end of September, just after the ﬁup-piuking,
and before sehool re-opened, that he accompanied his mother during her hop-picking
work in certain of the gardens near Aldershot, and there played with boys like
himsell, accompanying their hop-picking mothers from Aldershot. He was particu-
larly friendly with an Aldershot boy named Kercher, who, it appears, died of
Diphtheria on September 28rd at Stone Street, Aldershot. Hursey's was the first
recognised case in Frimley proper, and during Oectober and November numerous
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Camberley, are laid at suitable gradients. Flushing is provided by tanks, one for
York Town and one for Camberley, which, however, cannot be expected to act
efficiently until 2 more adequate water supply is obtained. Ventilation is carried out by

manholes and lampholes, which are situated about every 100 yards in the York Town

system, and about every 130 yards in that of Camberley. Disconnection of house-
drains from main sewers is not yet in general vuﬁun, though the former are sometimes
ventilated by stack pipes between the house and the sewer. Soil-pipe ventilation is
being gradually introduced. Bath and sink waste-pipes commonly open outside over
trapped gullies, but the inefficient bell-trap is still in use at internal sink-openings.

Diphtheria prevalence—Three deaths were registered from “ Croup ™ in York Town,
respeetively in December 1881, February 1882, and March 1883, the certificates being
signed by the same practitioner. The several ages were 7, 4, and 1 years, and the
deseription of the symptoms elicited on enquiry makes it probable that they were
essentially diphtheritic in nature. T'wo of them were in better-class houses, and the
third in a cottage which was exposed to nuisance from an offensive ditch receiving
slops and house refuse. No relation with antecedent Diphtheria in adjacent parts was
made out. Camberley has contributed only one death from throat-illness, a boy (set. 4)
having died from * Croup ™ in September 1882, in a well-circumstanced artisan house.
In this case, also, no relation with previous non-fatal cases, or with Diphtheria in other
districts, was discovered.

In common with the whole Rural District, no hospital provision or notification of
disease exists in York Town and Camberley. ,

The whole of Frimley parish was invested in January 1885 with urban powers under
scctions 26, 44, 157, and 158 of the Public Health Aect (1875), and byelaws are now
being drawn up.

(o) Lrenshan.

This is alarge scattered parish, of 8,807 acres and 2,100 inhabitants, situate south of
Farnham, and between that town and Hind Head. It contains a considerable pro-
portion of common-land, covered with furze and heather, and geologically is upon
Folkestone Sand.

Seanilary civcwmstances—The residences of gentry are interspersed amongst seatiered
groups of old cottage property in a large part of the parish, though some parts are
exclusively inhabited by poor cottagers. Frerement is received in rude privy-pits,
which are often mere openings made in the sandy soil of the district. : is
thrown on to the gardens, or retained in heaps. Wafer is supplied almost entirely
from shallow dip-wells, often in close proximity to foul unemptied privies, though here
and there a deep well is found. Drainage—Slops are either thrown by hand on to
the ground, or find their way into watercourses and ditches.

Diplitheria prevalence.~lzolated cases have from time to time oceurred in Frensham.
In July 1882 the death of an infant was recorded from * (a) Membranous Pharyngitis
and Laryngitis; (&) infective Bronehitis;” this appears to have been intended as a
synonym for Diphtheria. In August 1883 a death from Diphtheria was recorded,
which seems to have derived infeetion from the Bourne, a district near Farnham, at
which the disease was very prevalent at the time. Two fatal cases were registered
from Diphtheria in 1884,—one in February, and the other in June. The former seemed
to have owed his attack to communication with a case of throat-illness in the same
hiouse, which had been in free relation with Diphtheria at Farnham ; and the latier
may also have derived infection from the same locality, but in a mediate manner, sinee
her father (a coachman) was in the babit of driving constantly into Farnham ata time
when much Diphtheria existed there.

(€) Dockenfield.

This small parish, of 378 acres and 210 inhabitants, is placed rather to the north-
west of Frensham, close to that parish, and on the borders of Hampshire. Iis
zeological character resembles that of Frensham.

Saunitary circumstances—The cottages here are most of them small, badly con-
structed and ventilated. Ererement and Refuse disposal is by rude privy-pits, and
ash-heaps respectively.  Waler-supply is very deficient, rain-water being caught in
tubs, and drunk unfiltered ; surface springs, too, are largely used. These natural
ﬁH.EITEH Iﬂwu heen mlpplg,m-:nlad by the sinking of a well, 100 feet deep and steined with

rick. was presented to the parvish, not by the Sanitar thority, i
benevolence in ]l.HE-l. : 4 Saniny AW, R
No Diphtheria is recorded as having oceurred in Dockenfield of late years.
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year, an infant of eight months died of * Croup " at Coxbridge, Farnham. Concerning
these isolated cases of Diphtheria and * Croup™ oceurring in the extra-urban parts
of Farnham from 1875 to 1878, no information has been procurable, though one
ense was that of a hopper's child coming from Berkshire, who may therefore have
contracted the disease outside the district. No further deaths from Diphtheria were
registered until September 1852, though in 1851 there were three deaths from * Croup,”
and one from * Diphtheritic Croup.” (In 1882, also, another * Croup” death took
place.) The first of these ** Croup ™ eases occurred in September 1881, at Weydon Hill,
in the person of a l;g}:—pit_:kcr's child, who was taken ill just after the hu;:-picking. and
may have been in relation with other imported cases in the hop-fields. The next took
place in November at the Bourne, between which and Weydon Hill free relation
exists; intermediate non-fatal cases of throat affection may well have existed un-
recognised during the interval between these deaths. The two remaining deaths in
1851 took place at Boundstone in November, closely following the Bourne death, free
family and other relationship existing between these two places. The age at death
of these four cases was respectively 4, 4, 3, and 5 years. The 1852 * Croup ” death
was that of an infant living at Boundstone, and took place in August. According to
the Monthly Reports of the Medical Officer of Health for Farnham Urban Sanitary
District, there were a great many diphtheritic sore throats in Farnham during June
and July 1882; and, seeing the constant communication there is between Farnham
and Boundstone, infection may well have been transmitted from the former place.
The recorded Diphtheria death in September 1852 was at Moor Park, an isolated hamlet
near Farnham, and in free relation with it

Between May 19th, 1883, and January 5th, 1584, 12 Diplitheria deaths oceurred in the
extra-urban parts of Farnham, of which eight were in the Bourne, two at Hale, one at
Crooksbury, and one at Old Park. Their ages ranged from 3 to 18 years. The
first Bourne case was infected at Farnbham by visiting, previous to attack, the fair af
that town in May 15883, at a time when many cases of sore throat existed. 'The
disease was spread in the Bourne by personal communication, and by school attendance.
The potency of the latter was suggested by the fact that the majority of the sniferers
were of school age, and that the first attacked in families were attendants at school.
Further, relation of the later attocked with those earlier affected could in some
instances have taken place only at school.*

The two Hale deaths were on November 18th and 25th respeetively, but before and
after these dates non-fatal cases existed in the place in great numbers; and the
disease is not even yet extinet. Hale is in free eommunieation with both Farnham
and Aldershot, between which towns it lies. Numerous cases existed in both these
towns during the autumn of 1883, so that Hale Diphtheria may bé assumed to have
had its origin from relation with Farnham, or Aldershot, or both. Spread was made
easy by personal intercourse, and the Bishop's school here had undoubted influence
in keeping the disease going. This was shown in that most of the sufferers were
schiool-goers, that those first taken with the disease in families of children were usually
attendants at school, and that the schoolmaster’s ehildren themselves were attacked. +

The death at Crooksbury was on November 15th, 1883, at an isolated cottage; the
infection was most probably received on November 10th at Farnham, the child havin
visited the November fair at that town on that particular day. The Old Park deat
was on December 26th, 1883 ; these people had left, and I was unable to follow the case
further, but it was probably related to Farnham Urban Diphtheria. After January 5th,
1884, no further deaths were recorded until October 13th in the same year, when a
girl (wet. 3) died at Heath Bnd, Farnbam, of “Croup.” This case was related to
Aldershot, for the child’s mother was in the frequent habit of taking the child to this
town, when shopping and the like. (It has been seen, under the Aldershot heading,
that numerous deaths and cases were taking place at this time, and that tmdeapm[Ee
especially suffered.) '

In common with the rest of the Farnham Rural District, the extra-urban parts of
Farnham Parish have no hospital accommodation, no systematic disinfection is

* Stout children were noticed at the Bourne to sucenmb more frequently and more rapidly than thin ones.
lﬂliﬂl'l_ﬂl_m'ﬂ""?“"l cused, loss of voice and difieulty of swallowing ocenrred ; in others, wenkness of the lower
oxiremities,

1 No closure of the Bishop's School wns ordered by the Sanitary Authority. The school iself appears o

be well ventilated and constructed.  The cesspits attached to the privies, are, however, not ventilated, and but
suldom emptied.










